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INTRODUCTION TO THE FINANCIAT STATEMENTS

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

1. Business name, head core business

The Company was formed
pa rtnership).

On 2 May 2005, the Compa was registered with the District Couft in Pozna6, 21st Commercial Division of the National Court Register (at present: District
Court in Poznaf - Nowe

no.: KRS 233545.

On 25 June 2006, the

Head office of Polipak

ul. Harcerska 16

business name was changed to "POLIPAK" Sp. z o.o.

63-000 Sroda Wiel

The Company's core is manufacturing of polyethylene packaging such as garage bags, frozen food and ice bags, as well as film bags for industrrar uses.
The following is the iden of the Company's business activity as per the Polish Classification of Economic Activitvi 2Z2zZ.

2, Composition of the Board of Directors

transformation of 'Przedsiqbiorstwo Produkcyjno-Handlowe,,GG PLAST" Grzegorz Nowak i Wsp6lnicy Sp6ika Jawna, (general

andWilda,9thCommercial DivisionoftheNational CourtRegister),andentered intotheNational CompanyRegisterunder

Company's executive and management body consisted of the foljowing persons:
of the Board of Directors

Chief Commercial Officer
Chief Supply and Administration Officer
Chief Technology and Production Officer

, Chief Economic and Financial Officer

Directors acting independently or two Vice-Presidents actingjointly are authorised to represent the Company.

was dismissed from his role on 30 Januarv 2017.

following were the Company's shareholders:
of Piaseczno, holding 7,000 shares of pLN 100.00 each, with the total value of pLN 7o0,ooo.oo

sp. J. of Pozna6, holding 3,000 shares of pLN 1o0.oo each, with the total value of pLN 300,000.00.

parent:

z o.o. sp.k.

of the Ordinary lvleeting of Shareholders of 24 May 2016 (adopted under Article 45, clause j.c of the Accounting Act), starting
prepared as at 31 December 2OL6, Polipak Sp6tka z o.o. has been preparing its financial statements in compliance with IFRS

prepared using the accounting policies complaint with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as approved by
the period from 1 January through 31 December 2016, the period from 1 January through 31 December 2015, and the
as at 1 January 2015.

to all requirements of IFRS as adopted by the EU, and give a true and fair view of the companv's financial position as at 31
2016 and 1 January 2015, as well as the Company's profit and loss, cash flows, and changes in equity for the year ending 31

As at 31 December 2016,

Artur Gwardiak -

Magdalena to(-Grzesik -

Magdalena Sobota -

Leszek Pawiowski -
Emilia Topolska -

The President ofthe Board

Vice-President Leszek

3. Company's shareholders

As at 31 December 20t6,
a) Sarantis Polska Sp6tka

b) Grzegorz Nowak I

4. Business name of a parent

Sarantis Polska S.A.

5, Business name of an

GR Sarantis SA, Greece

6. Entity authorised to audit

Grant Thornton Frqckowiak

ul. abpa A, Baraniaka 881:

61-131 Poznah

7. Presentation rules

Pursuant to Resolution No.

with the Financial Sta

approved by the European

These Financial Statements

the European Union, and

comparative period with
These Financial Statements
December 2016,3t
December 2016 and 31 2015, respectively.
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8. Declaration of the Board of Directors

1) The Board of Directors of Polipak Sp6lka z o.o. declares to the best of its kn

been prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Stand

reliable and clear manner the Company's economic and financial position as

contains a true description of the Company's development, achievements and

2) The entitv authorised to audit the Financial Statements has been selected i

performed the audit, fulfilled the criteria for issuing an unbiased and indepen

Sroda Wielkopol ska, 14 F ebruary 2OI7

Board of Directors: Artur Gwardiak

Magdalena toS-Grzesik - Vice-President

Magdalena Sobota - Vice-President

Emilia Topolska - Vice-President

9. Significant accounting policies

as a gorn8 concern In

Basis for preparing separate Financial Statements

nce with the International financill Reporting Standards (IFRS)

I

national Financial Reporting Standfrds, IFRS l "First-time
e retrosptictive restatement of finfncial figures to meet the

requrrements ot rne Internauonat Frnancrat Kepon:rng sranoaros are presenreo rn noqrtronal Information, Note 1.

These Financial Statements have been prepared based on the accrual principle and the assumption that the Company will
the foreseeable future.

The following are fundamental accounting policies adopted by the Company's:

1. A calendar year is the Company's financial year.

2. There are the following interim reporting periods in the financial year:

Month - for settling prime cost and reconciling detailed accounts with general ledger accounts.

A statement of profit or loss is prepared in a sinrgle statement format, split into two sections: profit and loss account ( up

by type and by function.
gross profit/loss items),

Half-year - for measuring assets and liabilities, and determining a financial result in accordance with the adopted account policies.

Changes in Equity, and CashSemi-annual financial statements include: the Crompany's Balance Sheet as at 30 June, Profit and Loss Account, Statement
Flow Statement for the period starting 1 January and ending 30 June .

3. As part of the adopted accountin8 policies, the Company adopts the IAS/IFRS benchmark treatment to present its

and helpful.
4. Presentation currency - the statements are presented in the Polish currency (P[N) rounded down to the nearest zloty. PLN

currency.

5. "Accounting policy", "Stock-taking Guidelines" and internal regulations ofthe Board of Directors all govern cost records allcrcation, stock-taking,
measurement of assets and liabilities, and procedures and rules adopted for data protection in lT systems in place in the
6. Separate operational guidelines govern preparation, circulation and control of accounting evidencd.

Judgments and estirnates

The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires the Board of Directors to make judgments,

significantly affectthe adopted policies and presented amounts ofassets, equity, liabilities, income, and expenses.

anil assumptions that

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical expertise and other factors that are considered reasonable the circumstances, and the
resultsof whichprovidegroundsforassessing carryingvaluesof assets,equity,andliabilities,whicharenotapparentfrom
differ from estimated values.

sources. Actual values may

in a manner that is reliable

the Company's functional

ich estimates wereThe estimates and assoclated assumptions are verified on an on-going basis. Changes in estimates are reported forthe period in

changed,orforcurrentorfutureperiodsifchangesinestimatesrelatebothto currentandfutureperiods.



Property, plant and

Property, plant and except investment property, is measured at cost which includes its purchase price or production cost and costs directlv
attributable to bringing the
Production cost includes all

into use.

directly attributable to producing and installing the assets, reasonable indirect costs, costs of dismantling and
removing the item, which required to be incurred to bring the assets into use.

Property, plant and

Costs of significant repairs

useful life.

Costs of day-to-dav mai and servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
An asset is subject to depf when it is available for use, i.e. when it is adapted to the location and conditions for it to be capable of starting operation.
Deoreciation of an asset on the first day of the month following the one in which the asset was accepted for use, and is carried out in a manner intenoeo
by the management, over course of its estimated useful life
The rates adooted and used

Items of property, plant equipment of negligible value are those whose acquisition price does not exceed PLN 1500. The following useful lives are assumed
for the property, plant, and

Buildings and structures
Technical equipment and

Motor vehicles and other
5 - loyears

2 - 10 years

Property, plant and

lfthere have been events
for impairment.

lf there is any indication
reduced to its recoverable

lmpairment losses are

The gain or loss arising
carrying amount of the

Lease agreements, under
leases in accordance witlt
of the lease term and tht:

Where there is no

is subject to depreciation and impairment
regular inspection programs are recognized under property, plant and equipment, and depreciated the course ofthe estimated

depreciation are reviewed on a periodic basis, leading to an adjustment of the depreciation charges in the subsequent vears.
of negligible value are subject to a simplified procedure, whereby they are subject to one-off depreciation charge.

which indicate that the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment, may not be revocable, the assets are tested

the assetmaybeimpairedandthecarryingamountoftheassetexceedsitsrecoverablevalue,thenthevalueoftheassetis
lue by an impairment loss.

IAS 16 and IAS 38.

certainty that the leasee will obtain ownership before the end of the lease, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the tease

The recoverable value of of property, plant and equipment is higher of their net selling price or value in use.
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income under operating expenses

the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the net revenue and the
and disclosed as income or expense in the Statement of Comprehensive lncome.

Finance lease

substantially all the risks and rewards from the leased assets are transferred to the Company (lessee), are classified as finance
lT,includedinproperty,plantandequipment,anddisclosed atthelowerofthefairvalueoftheleasedassetatcommencement

t value of the minimum lease payments.

The depreciation policy for assets held under finance leases is consistent with that applicable to the assets owned by the Company, while depreciation is
recognised in accordancel

term and useful life of the
Lease payments made by Company are apportioned between the reduction of the outstanding liability and the finance cost The finance cost is allocareo
and recognised in the of Comprehensive Income during the lease term.

Intangible asset!i

Intangible assets are when it is probable that future economic benefits that might be directly attributable to the assets will flow to the entitv
Initially, intangible ass_et!; a stated at acquisition or oroduction cost.
Intangible assets are at acquisition price or production cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Intangible assets with useful lives are amortised when they are ready for use, i.e. when the asset is in the location and condition ner:essarv for it to be
capable of operating in the intended by management, over the course of their estimated useful economic lives.
The amortisal.ion period the amortisation rates are reviewed at least at the financial year-end, and an adjustment, if any, of amortisation charges is made
in the subsequent periods.

Intangible assets with useful iives are not amortised. Their value is reduced by impairment losses, if any.
The following are useful lives typically applied for intangible assets

Concessions, licences and

Computersoftwarc 2-5
Intangible assets are tested

r assets 2 - 10 years

that the asset may be i

impairment ifthere are circumstances indicatingthatthe carrying amount may not be recoverable. lfthere is any indication
and the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable value, then the value of the asset is reduced to its recoverable

value and is the higher of:
its net selling price or value
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Property, plant and equipment under construction i

I

I

Items of property, plant and equipment under construction are classified as fixed assets are items property, plant and equipment fluring the period of
construction, assembly, improvement, reconstruction or extension ofthe exist | -

Items of property, plant and equipment under construction are measured at t
or construction of new investments, and costs incurred to improve, reconstru

the asset is brought into use, directly related to acquisition or internal genera

adaptation of the asset for use, incurred until the asset is brought into use, ar

The value ot property, plant and equipment under construction is reduced by impalrment losses.

Interests in other entities

Interests in other entities are measured at their acquisition price less impairment losses.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following categories: (a) held-to-maturity investments, (b) loans and receivables, (c) availa sale financial assets, (d)

ments have beenfinancial instruments measured through profit or loss. The classification of the financial assets depends on the purpose for which

acquired. At initial recognition, investments are measured at fair value which is increased for investments not classified as

profit and loss, by transaction costs which are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the investment item.
s at fair value through

Investments are derecognised when the rights to rewards and risks of the investments have expired or have been transferred to
(al he I d-to-moturity i nvestme nts

are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that the Company intends and is

assets which are classified to other groups.

Assets, which will be realised or intended for sale or consumption during the Company's normal operating cycle, are included in assets. Held-to-

maturity investments are measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Ibl loons and receivobles

are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market, and arise when
provided to a debtor with no intention of classifying those receivables as financial assets measured at fair value Lhrough profit or
current assets, except for maturities exceeding 12 months of the balance sheet date.

Trade and other receivables are measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method, with doubtful debt allowances

based on the ageirrg structure of the receivables.

gooos or servrces are

They are included in

On account of short payment periods that do not exceed 12 months, the Company assumes that differences between the of trade receivables at

amortised cost and the measurement thereof at amount to be paid are negligible. Therefore, the Company does not measure

lc\ ovo i I ob le-fo r-sa I e fi no nci o I assets

arenon-derivativefinancialassetsdesignatedasavailableforsaleoranyotherfinancialassets thatarehotclassifiedintothe a) or b). They are

financial assets areincludedincurrentassetsifthe Companyintendstodisposeofthemwithin12monthsafterthebalancesheetdate.Avai
measured at fair value. Any gains and losses on the measurement of available-for-sale financial assets are recognised as separate of equity until the time

the assets are disposed of or by the time of the assets are impaired, in which time the accumulated profit or loss previously in equity is recognised in

the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

(d) investments measured at fair value through profit or loss

An instrument is classified as an investment measured at fair value through profit and loss if it is intended for sale or is classified such at initial recognition.
Financial instruments are classified as those measured at fair value through profit or loss if the Company actively manages the i and makes decisions

third party.

to hold to maturity, except

which are made

at amortised cost.

as incurred.as to its purchase or sale based on its fair value. After initial recognition, attributable transaction costs are recognized in profit or
Any gains and losses attributable to the investment are recognised in the Stated of Comprehensive Income.



I nventories

I nventories are measur€td

costs of purchase, costs of

stated at the lower of acquisition price or production cost and net realisable value. Acquisition price or production cost inctudes
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. production cost of work in

progress and finished prod includes direct costs (primarily materials) increased by a suitable portions of costs directlv attributable to the production
process (labour,..,..) and overheads, base! on the normal capacity of the production facilities.
Costs of work in progress finished products are assigned using the weighted average cost formula.
Costs oF materials and com ities are assigned using the weighted average formula.

s of inventories sold and unallocated production overheads under operating activities in the statement of profit and loss, in the
total amount of PLN 77 128 in 2015 and PLN 96 531 77I,40in20!6.

Receivables

Trade and other receivalcleslare recognised when they become due and payable to the company.
Trade and other receivableslare disclosed in the amount expected to be paid, less doubtful debt allowances.
Bad debts are charged to cofprehensive income at the time when they are considered uncollectible.

I

Cash and cash equivalents 
I

onvertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk

enses. Prepayments include expenses relating to periods following the period in
quent periods. They are differed only if they meet the definition of assets.
iod to which it relates. Deferred income includes subsidies received forrne
relatestoacostitem,isrecognisedasincomeproportionallytothecosts which

s gradually recolnised in profit as the revenue through periods proportionally to depreciation charges for that asset.
n purposes/ the Company does not reduce the carrying value of the assets by the value of subsidies, but discloses tne
Accrued expenses and deferred income',.

Equity

Net realisabie value is the
The Company recognised

Equity is established by the
Share (initial) capital arises

constituting the product of

resources embodying

sellingpriceintheordinarycourseof business, lesscostsofcompletionand costsnecessarvtomakethesale.

in accordance with the binding regulations, i.e. applicable acts and the Company's Articles of Association.
the Company's shares taken up by the Company's shareholders and is recognised at its nominal value, in the amount

numberofsharestakenupandproperlypaidupandthenominalvalueof oneshareasperthe company,sArticlesof

the company has a legal or constructive obligation arising from future events, and when it is probable that an outflow of
benefitswill berequiredtosettletheobligation; andwhenareliableestimatecanbemadeoftheamountoftheoblisation.

Association and the entry into the National Court Register
The Company classifies the into the following categories: share capital; supplementary capital intended for covering losses, if any; res;erve capital
intended for the Companyrs and other reserve capital
U ndistributed profit for years and the profit for the current year are presented in the stated of Financial position as retatned earninss.

Financial liabilities 
I

I

Financial liabilities other tharf hedging derivatives are disclosed in the Statement of Financial position under the following items:
loans and other debt instrqments,
finance leases, 

i

trade and other payables, dnd

cost using the effective interes!
es to be measured at fair value

rlvatives other than hedging instruments.
of discounting would be negligible.
to defer their repayment for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

I

I

I

Provisions, contingent liabilitiel and contingent assets

Provisions are recognisecl

The timing and amount of a may be uncertain.
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Employee benefits

Retirement grdtuity ond jubilee

Provisions are made, among other, for:
warranties given to provide after-sale support of products and servrces,

pending lawsuits and litigation,
restructuring, only if the Company is required to carry our the restructuring under separate regulations, or binding agreements

the restructuring process.

Provisions are not recognized for future operating losses,

The amount ofthe provision is the best estimate ofthe expenditures required to settle the present obligBtion, based on most

date on which the financial statements are prepared, including evidence as to risl(s and uncertainties. Where the effect of the

a provision is measured by discounting expected future cash flows to their present value, using a discourit rate that reflects

timevalue of moneyandrisks,if any,specifictotheliability.Wherediscountingisused,anyprovisionincreasereflectingthe
finance cost.

Where the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is treated as a separate

that the reimbursement will be actuallv received.

Where the outflow in settlement of the present obligation is unlikely, no contingent liability is recognised in the Statement of
continsent liabilities identifiable in a business combination under IFRS 3.

Any possible inflows of economic benefits to the Company, which do not yet meet the criteria to quality as assets, are classified

information is disclosed in the notes.

been made regarding

evidence available on the
value of money is material,

market assessment of the

of time is recognised as

when it is virtually certain

Position except for

contingent assets, of which

Disclosed in the Statement of Financial Position, liabilities and provisions for employee benefits comprise the following items:
current employee benefits arising from wages and salaries, including bonuses, and social security contributions,
provisions for accrued holiday entitlement and

othernon-currentemployeebenefits,underwhichtheCompanyincludesjubilee andretirementgratqity.

Current employee benefits

Liabilities for current employee benefit are measured on an undiscounted basis and are reported in the Statement of Financial

paid.

Provisions for occrued holiday entitlement
The Company sets up a provision for costs of accumulating compensated absences, which the Company will have to pay as a

that has accumulated as at the balance sheet date. The provision for accrued holidav entitlement is classified as a current

The Company sets up a provision for future retirement gratuity and jubilee obligations to allocate costs to the period in which t
The present value of the provisions at each balance sheet date is estimated by an independent actuary. Accrued provisions are

be paid and related to the period until the balance sheet date. Demographics data and information on employee turnover are

In line with the payroll system in place in the Company, the Company's employees are entitled to jubilee and retirement gratuity Jubilee benefits are

paidoutto employeesuponcompletionof acertainnumberofyearsofservice(10or20years).Retirementgratuitybenefitsare -off benefits, paid out

when the employee retires. The amounts of retirement gratuity and jubilee benefits depend on the length of employment and

emproyee.

ge remuneration of the

at the amount to be

of the unused entitlement
and is not discounted.

benefits become vested.

discounted payments to
on historical records.

The effect of the measurement of the provision for future liabilities for retirement gratuity and jubilee iq recognized in the profit toss.



are recognized at net value under finance income orfinance cost in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Non-monetarv trems
that are measured at cost in foreign currency are translated at the historical exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

Revenue recognition

Sales revenue from prod commodities and mateiials is recognized at the time the goods are delivered when risks and rewards are transferred to a
purchaser, and when it is that the entity will gain economic benefits from the transaction and when the amount of revenue can be reliablv assessed.
Sales revenue from commodities, materials and services are stated at net value, less VAT and discounts.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign

settlement of such tra
Bank of Poland at that

Revenue is measured at fair

lncome tax

Application of policies

The policies above apply al

Effect of new standards and

New or amended standards a

"Polipak" Sp' z o.b" for the period besinnins 01 Januarv 2015 and endine 31 December 2o16 lw ztoivehl

are recognized at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses arising from the
sandfromthetranslationofthemonetaryassetsandliabilitiesasatthebalancesheetdate attheaverageratesoftheNational

lue of the received or due payment.

Income tax comprises t and deferred tax.
Current tax liabilities result
Act, in force in the given tax
Deferred tax reflects the
purposes.

Deferred tax assets and

enacted or substantively

the calculation of tax payable on taxable income according to general rules and rates specified in the Corporate Income Tax
, including deferred tax .

taxeffectof temporarydifferencesbetweenthecarryingamountsof assetsorliabilitiesandtheamountsusedfortaxation

aremeasuredat bindingtaxratesthatareexpectedtobeappliedwhentemporarydifferencesrealise,usingtaxrates
at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses ro

to comparative figures

on the Company's financial statements

interpretations in force as of L January 2016 and their effect on the Company's financial statements:

Benefits"

I the rules of condubt in the case when employees make contributions to cover the costs of a defined benefit plan. In the
came into force for annuai periods beginning on or after 1 February 2015. The amendment did not affect the Company's

the extent that it is that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used.
Deferred tax assets and are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
The assets and liabilities are regardless of when they are to realised.
In the balance sheet, deferr tax assets and liabilities are classified and presented as property, plant and equipment or non-current liabilities.

1. Amendments to IAS 1!)

The amendments involvel

European Union, the
financial statements, becau the company does not offer defined benefit plans to its employees. The amendment did not have a material impact on the
Company's financial s, because employees do not make contributions to cover the costs of defined benefit olans.

2. Amendments to IFRS 2, 3, IFRS 8, IAS 16, IAS 38 and IAS 24 resulting from the "Project ofthe annual amendments: cycleZOLO-20I2,,, which came into
force in the European Union annual periods beginhing on or after 1 February 20i.5. Amendments to the standards include:
. IFRS 2: The lloard further the standard, changing or introducing new definitions of the following terms: market condition, the condition of the
provision of services, the of vesting, the performance condition. The amendment did not affect the Company's financial statements.
. IFRS 3: The lSoard further fied the rules for the Valuation of conditional payment after the acquisition date, to make them compatible with other
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6.The amendments to IAS 27 "Seoarate Financial Statements'

7. Amendment in IAS 27 "Separate Financial Statements"

standards (primarily with IFRS 9 / IAS 39 and IAS 37). The amendment did not affect the Company's financial statements,
. IFRS 8: The Board imposed on entities engaged in combining the operating segments requirement of additional disclosures

and economic characteristics for which they combined. The amendment does not affect the Company's financial statements,

segment combination.

the combined segments

there was no operating

. IFRS 8: standard as amended provides that the requirement to disclose reconciliation of total segment pssets presented in the sheet is mandatory

only if the value of the assets is disclosed by segment. The amendment did not affect the Company's financial statements,

within one segment.
. IAS 16 and IAS 3t]: The Board corrected the method for calculating the gross amount and the accumulated depreciation of pr

and accumulated amortization of an intangible asset) in the cased when the revaluation model is applied. The amendment did

financial statements because the Company does not apply the revaluation model.

y, plant and equipment,

affect the Company's

. IAS 24: The definition of a related party has been extended to include service providers of key management personnel. Appropr disclosures have been

all activities are conducted

personnel have not been

the assets and liabilities

anrj determine goodwill.

s financial statements, as

did not affect the

financial

is effective for
because the Company

able to be measured at the

t is effectivel for
decided not to use the

into force for annual

and does not reverse the

do not apply to
did not the

This amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The amendment did not affect the Com

there were no such transactions.

4.Amendment to IAS 16 "Property, Plant and Equipment" and IAS 38 "lntangible assets"

The amendment prohibits the use of revenue-based depreciation for property, plant and equipment and significantly limits the u of revenue-based

also added. The amendment did not affect the Company's financial statements, because the responsibilities of the key

entrusted to other entities

3. Amendment to IFRS 11 ".Joint Arransements"

Under the amendrnent, an entity which acquires an interest in a joint operation which is a business (enterprise), will have to
of suchoperationinaccordancewiththe principlessetoutinlFRS3,i.e.,amongothers,measureassetsandliabilitiesatfairval

amortisation for intangible assets. This amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The

Company's financial statements as the Company only uses straight-line depreciation method.

IAS 41. This amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016 . The amendment did not affect the

statements as the Comoanv does not conduct asricultural activities.

equity method. To date, IAS 27 provided only for measurement at acquisition price or in accordance with IFRS 9 / IAS 39. This

annual periods beginning on or after L January 2016. The amendment did not have impact on the financial statements of the

applies the cost method to measure shares in subsidiaries.

According to the amendment, in separate financial statements, the shares in the subsidiary, joint venturg or associate also will

equity method. To date, IAS 27 provided only for measurement at acquisition price or in accordance with IFRS 9 / IAS 39. This a

annual periods beginning on or after L January 2016. The amendment did not affect the Company's finapcial statements, since it
equity method.

owners, or from assets intended for distribution to owners to assets available for sale, this means a continuation of the original
adjustments made. The amendment did not affect the Company's financial statements, as there were no such transactions.
. IFRS 7: the amendment clarifies that, applicable from 2013, the requirements to disclose information on items reported at net
condensed interim financial statements, unless this information is required to be disclosed under the general rules of IAS 34. The

5. Amendment to IAS 16 "Property, Plant and Equipment" and IAS 41 "Agriculture"

The amendment provides that bearer plants (e.g.. grape vines, fruit trees) will be excluded from the scope of IAS 41 and included n tfre scope of IAS :[6 as

internally generated fixed assets. With this amendment, it will not be necessary to measure these plants at fair value at each ba sheet date as required by

According to the amendment, in the separate financial statements, the shares in the subsidiary, joint vehture or associate will be to be measured by the

8. Amendments to IFRS 5, IFRS 7, IAS 19 and IAS 34 resulting from the "Annual lmprovements Project: Cycle 2012-2074",which
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. Amendments to the standards include:
. IFRS 5: the amendment stipulates that if a company has changed the purpose of assets from assets held for sale directly to intended for distribution to

impact on the Company's financial statements, since it concerns only the condensed interim financial statements.
. IFRS 7: The amendment introduces a new guideline to evaluate whether involvement in transferred assets has been lf the entity has transferred

transferred, this means thatthe assets, but ha:; entered into a service agreement in which remuneration is dependent on the amount and maturitv ofthe
an entity is continuing involvement in the asset. The Company analysed the transactions and assessed that this amendment does affect them.
. IAS 19: The standard allows application of interest rates appropriate for treasury securities to discount cash flows, if the for the securities of

commercial entities is illiquid. The amendment to the standard specifies that the depth of the market should be evaluated from perspective of the currency

10



of these securities, and not
its statements.
. IAS 34: standard allows

accompany such interim

the country. The company analysed the situation on the security markets and considered that this amendment has no impacr on

ceftain information required by IAS 34 for condensed interim financial statements to be presented in other documents that
s, for example, in the report of operations. lf the information is contained in the accompanying documents, a clear

Financial Statements", IFRS 12 "Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities" and IAS 28 "lnvestments in Associates and

method in accounting for its investments in joint ventures and associates,
to consolidate subsidiaries that provide ancillary services; however, if such subsidiary is itself an investment entity, it is not

reference must be posted the interim financial statements to where such information disclosed. Additional documents must be available to users on the
same conditions and at the
amendment applies only to

time as the interim financial statements. Otherwise, the interim financial statements will be considered incomplete. The
interim financial statements, and, as such, does affect these statements. The Company does not intend to use the options

allowed under the tAS 34.

9. Amendment to IAS 1 of Financial Statements"
IAS Board, as part of a project that will lead to greater transparency and avoid excessive disclosures in the financial statements, has published a number

amendments include the following aspects:of amendments to IAS 1.

. The Board points out that
contrary to the principle of

e inclusion of too many irrelevant information in the financial statements makes the financial statement unreadable and is

. items required by the $t

may be disaggregated.

to be included in the statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income and in the statement of financial Dositron

. requirements were added

position,
subtotals included in the statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income and in the statement of financial

. the sequence of notes to financial statements depends on the decision of the company, but their comprehensiveness and comparability must be ensured.
This amendment is for annual periods beginhing on or after 1 January 2016. The Company reviewed its existing financial statements and concluded
that the Company alreacly es the amended rules, therefore no amendment is required to its financial statements.

10. Amendment to IFRS 10

Joint Ventures"

IAS Board added another from consolidation or application of the equity method in case of investment units
. if the parent company is a subsidiary of the investment unit, which recognizes its investments at fair value in accordance with IAS 39 / IFRS 9, then
such parent company of -level is ailowed not to prepare consolidated financial statements,
. ifthe investor is on the investment unit, which recognizes its investments at fair value in accordance with IAS 39 / IFRS 9, then such investor does
not have to apply the
. lnvestment unit is requi

consolidated.
This amendment is for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The Company is not an investment entity and does not belong to the
company, which has an unit, so amendment has no impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Standards and interpretations ective in the version published by the IASB but not endorsed by the European Union, are presented below in Lhe section
concerning standards and etations that have not come into force.
Application of the standard or '

In these consolidated financial

pretation before its entry into force
tements, voluntary early application of a standard or interpretation was not used,.

Published standards and ions that have not come into force for period beginning on l- January 2016 and their impact on the Company's statements.
Until the date of preparation oflthese consolidated financial statements, the following new or amended standards and interpretations effective for annual oeriods

I7



Financial statements of

2. New IFRS 14 "Regulatory deferral Accounts"

The new standard applies only to entities that make transition to IFRS and operate in sectors in which the state-regulated prices used, such as natural gas,

electricity or water supply sectors. Standard allows for the continuation of the accounting policy for recognizing revenue from
before the transition to IFRS, both for the first report prepared according to IFRS, and later. The new regulations will not affect

statements of the Company because the Company already uses IFRS. The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or
will not be approved for use in the European Union.

1 January 2016, but it

3. New IFRS L5 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers"

The new standard replaces IAS 11 and IAS 18, and provides a consistent revenue recognition model. The new s-step model will
revenue from the customer dependent upon the control ofthe good or service. In addition, the standard introduces additional
guidance on several specific issues. The Company has not completed the analysis of the impact of the standard on the financial
estimates indicate that revenue recognition will not change significantly.
The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or atter 1 January 2018.

4. Amendmentto IFRS 10 "Consolidated Financial Statements" and IAS 28 "lnvestments in Associates and

Joint Ventures"

the recognition of
requirements and

but preliminary

business activities as used

consolidated financial

the moment. ln turn, the

the extent of the other

.'fhe amendment to IFRS

The current principles governing the settlement ofthe loss of control over a subsidiary provided the recognition of profit or loss

equity method principles stated that the result of transactions with entities valued using the equity method are recognised only
shareholders'interests ofthose entities. In a situation where the parent company sells or makes an in-kind contribution in the
valued using the equity method in such a way that it loses control over it, the above-cited regulations would conflict with each

10 and IAS 28 eliminates this collision as follows:

to an entity

- ifthe entity over which control was lost is an enterprise (business entity), the result on the transaction is recognised in full,
- ifthe entity over which control was lost is not a business, the result is recognised only to the extent of other investors'interests

The entrv into force of this amendment has been oaused.

5. New IFRS 15 "Leases"

The new standard regulates lease agreements (including rental and land lease agreements) provides a ndw definition of lease.

Significant changes apply to lessees: for each lease agreement, the standard requires recognising "the right to use the asset" and corresponding financial
liability in the balance sheet. The right to use the asset is then amortised, while the liability measured at amortised cost. Simpli has been provided for
short-term contrads (up to 12 months) and assets of low value.

The accounting treatment of leases for lessors is similar to the principles set out in the current IAS 17.

The company estirnates that the new standard will have a material impact on its financial statements, but did not yet complete t
value. The amendrnents are effective tor annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

process of determining

6. The amendments to IAS 12 "lncome Taxes"

IAS Board clarifies the following principles:

- on the recognition of deferred tax assets in the event of unrealized losses,

- calculation of future tax profits necessary to recognize deferred tax assets.

The Company estirnates that the amendment will not have a material impact on its financial statements. The amendment is

beginning on or after L Januaty 2077.

tor annual periods

72



7. The amendments to IAS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows,'
The revised standard requirbs entities to disclose information that enables users of financial statements to evaluate changes in the debt of the unit (i.e.. change
tn toanst.

The Company estimates that the amendment will entail the need to supplement the disclosure with new data. The amendment is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after I Jan]ary 2OI7.

8. Amendment to IFRS 2 "Share-based payments"

IAS Board regulated threle issues:

- accounting for conditions Qther than vesting conditions in valuation of a cash-regulated program,
- classification of share-based payments, if the entity is required to withhold an employee,s tax,
- modification of the prograi, which results in a change of the cash-settled program into the program settled in equity instruments.
The Company estimates that the change of the standard will have not any impact on the financial statements due to the fact that there were no transactions
covered by the
The amendment is eff for annual periods beginning on or after L January 201g.

9. Amendment to IFRS 4 "l Contracts"
Followingtheintroductioncjf thenewstandardonfiqancial instruments(lFRS9) in2olg,thelASBoardhasintroduced temporary(untiltheentryintoforceof

lo.Amendments to IFRS 1, 12 and IAS 28 resulting from the "Annual lmprovements Project: 2014-2016 cycle." Amendments to the standards include:
IFRS 1-: some shoft-term wereremoved,whichwereusedduringthetransitiontolFRs, duetothefactthatperiods,towhichtheexemptions
applied, have already and the application of exemptions was no longer possible. The amendment will not have any impact on the company's financial
statements, since they are

IFRS 12: clarifies that the d

prepared according to IFRS.

accordance with lFltS 5. 'fhe willnotaffecttheCompany'sfinancialstatements,becausetheCompanydoesnotclassifyintereststothe held-for-
sare category

amendment will not have aly impact on the Company's financial statements, as there were no transactions affected by these cnanges.
The amendment will come into effect for annual periods beginning on 1 January 2017 (IFRS 12) or 1 January 2o1g (IFRS 1 and IAS 28).

11. The amendments to IAS {0 "lnvestment prooertv,'

The amendment soecifies ruies for transferring investment properties to or from the investment property category from or to fixed assets or inventories.'I
First of all, properties are tra'nsferred when there is a ihange in use, and such change must be supported by evidence. Standard explicitly says that the change
in intention ofthe board itsdlf is not enough to suppoit a transfer.
Amendment to the stanclardl should to be applied to all changes in use that occur after the entry into force of the revised standard and to all investment
property held as at the date f,f introduction of the amendment.
The company estimates thai the amendment of the standard will not have any impact on its financial statements because the Company does not have anv
investment property.

The amendment is effectivelfor annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 201g.

12. The new IFRIC 22 "Foreigh exchange transactions and advances,
The interpretation clarifir:s the exchange rate to be applied to sale or purchase transactions in foreign currency, that include the receipt or payment of advance
consideration in such foreigrl currency.
Accordi ion, the advance consideration shoul d, using the exchange rate of that date. Then, at
recogni n currency, expense, or the related a the related asset, expense or income should be
recogni rate of the date when the advance c ot the exchange rate of the date when the relateo asset,
income ized.

The company estimates that]the new interpretation will not have a material impact on its financial statements, as advance payments for future deliveries occur
sporadically' 1'he interpr€:tati'on is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 20j.8.

res for interests in other entities required under this standard also apply when interests are classified as held for sale in
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Financial statements of "Pg 16 (w zfotvch)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING 31 DECEMBER 2015

31 December

2015

ASSETS

Fixed assets

Property, plant and equipment
lniAnoihla Acca+c

Perpetual usufruct of land

Financial assets in other entities
Deferred tax assets

Total fixed assets

Current assets

I nventories

Trade account receivable from other entities, and other receivables

including : VAT receivable

Trade receivables frorn related entities

lncome tax receivables

Prepayments and accrued income

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

Total assets

Note 2015

Iigurcs)

7 734090
8633 422

363 398

r'206 756

0

:L39 677

7037 677

1 January
20L5

(restoted figurcs)

+

5

6

7

8

33 369 060

37 886

71L 4LO

0

317 608

Lr 645 597

8 124 060

7 s91 200

7 2L4 286

0

80 404

234 r75

77 576 540
14 443

686 390

746 970

284 005

5 919 207

8 82s 688

192 910

600 415

0

78 908

198 250

34 435 964 2tttoz498 19 308 348

10

t\

L1

17
11

a5

L4



EnelClblelernents of

EQUIW AND LIABILITIES

31 December 31 December
20L6 20L5

(restoted Iigures)

Nota
1 January

2015

(restoted figures)
EquitV

Share capital

Share

premrum

Retained earnings
Total equity

Non-current liabilities

Loa ns

Loans from related entities
Deferred tax liability
Provision for other liabilities
Other financial liabilities
Non-current accrued expens;es dnd deferred income

Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

including: VAT payable

personal income tax
Sociol Security Office

L4 1 000 000

3 607 059

lr roJ- b5z

15 768 691

1 000 000

3 607 059

8 959 790

13 s56 849

1 000 000

3 607 0s9

7 986268
12593327

I4
1"4

ao

1"6

8

f,

I6
L2

L78 740
13 500 000

116 031

445 679
I 519 672

677 487

5 698 14s

0

L29 597
498 809

) 17L q?q

791 656

2 594 677

0

49 973
471 209

982 886

971.72L

L6 47L oLO 9 292756 5 070 456

18 70 486 493

0

167 510
679 894

78 3L0
669 194

L6 758 271,

0

642 270

t 245 977

113 898

\78743

LO 30I 749

0
138 883

609 720

63 s89
760 463

3 490 136

0

72r 500
L 062 547

248324
209 757

8 706 517

0

719 119

466 744

56 876
24 195

6 762 724

0

433 798

974 907

35 992
328 882

Speciol funds
Trade accounts payable to related entities
Loans payable

Loans payable to related entities
Other financial liabilities

18

fo
ao

ao

18

1B

12

Employee benef its payable

Income tax payable

Current accrued expenses and dbferred income

Total current liabilities

Total equity and liabilitiesi

The restotement oJ comporotive figi/res for 2075 ond 2074 is presented in Note L

30 094 786 t6794 476 L7 267 0r5

62334 486 39 6s4 060 34 930 809

IJ



Financial statements of yl$

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR TI-flE PERIOD ENDING 31 DECEMBER 2016

3lLDecember 31 December

2AL6 20!5
(restoted Jigures)

96907 729 79722458

Continuing operations
Sales revenue

Revenue on the sale of products

Revenue on the sale of services

Revenue on the sale r)f commodities and materials

Sales revenue

Other revenue

Increase/decrease in product inventories

Manufacturing cost of products for the entity's own purposes

Amortisation and depreciation

Consumption of materials and energy

External services

I d^s5 dr ru Lr rdr tis)

Payroll

Social security contributions and other benefits

Other prime costs

Value of goods and materials sold

Other costs

Total operating expenses

Gain on operating activities

Finance income

Finance cost

Net finance income and cost

Earnings before tax

Income tax

Net profit

Other net comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

The restotement of comporotive figures for 2015 is presented in Note 1

19

19

19

ZI

18 049

1 869 84s

84 090

1 585 082

2 168 450

51 681

(3180357)

(7226rs63)
(7163656)

(32s04s)

(1064s4s1)

l27r922rl
l??qqqql

(r742rs3',)

1129682)

(961834

3 636 238 4 060 510

(25291

\720941
(2866461]|

(s8110201)

(4r34420]|

(284e80)

1927807sl
(22764521

(23s2301
tl ?qanqTl

(s3028)

22

23

s 083

(9227Or1

30 9s3

(1336613)

i (9170181 (130s6s91

i 27r922O 27s49st

(s17378) (74s011)

_J.2UV 200se40

220L842 2 009 940

--



CASH FLOW STATEMENT

the year ending 31 December 20L6
01,01.2016-

3r.L2.20t6
01.01.2015-

3t.t2.20t5
kestoted figutes)

332 300 (L24766)

423840 404837

Iiyfuo], [55 / /b6)
74 570 740 757

1441"7sO7) (1314889)

27L9 220

3 r-80 367

(60e8168)

338 894

(r3777Ol|

(s17378)
(4933s7)

275495t

z 60b 4bl

l4r4o76l
4 9s3 r44
(3477O3]|

(74s011)

(477630]'

Change in inventories

Change in receivables

lnvesting acthtities

Change in liabilities
Change in prepayments ancl acdruals

lncome tox paid

Other adjustments

Net cash from operating activi+ies (4780049) 7338313

Inflows from the sale of prope(y, plant, equipment and intangible assets
Inflows from the sale of financidl assets

Acquisition of property, plarrt, dquipment and intangible assets
Acquisition of financial assets

Net cash from investing activities

Findncing octivities
Loans

Repayment of loans received

Payments under financial lease agreements
Interest oaid

Dividends and other payments to shareholders
Other financial inflows
Other financial outflows
Net cash from financing activities
Change in cash and cash equivalents
Effect of exchange rates changqs on the foreign currency cash balance
Balance-sheet change in cash

Cash and cash equivalents as at 1 January 2015

Cash and cash equivalents as ai 31 December 2016

The restatement of comporative Jidures for 2075 is presented in Note 7

526 967

(16801ss4)

L 775 786

746 970
(7898325)

lL6274se7l (s37ss70l

20 9L4 L29
_ (41906)

(734092) (11s3s6)
(393s60) (373988)

- (1036419)

4933!;7 477 630
(30281) (3084e)

20249ss3 ILL20929\
(80s083)

1 64r
(803442)

841 815

124471

839 367

L037 6L7 198 250

232 53s 1 040 06s



Financial statements of L6 (w zfotvch)

STATEMENT ON CHANGES IN EQUITY
(restated figures)

Supplementary

Equitv capital

1 000 000 3 607 059Equity as at 1 January 2015

Profit for the period

Dividend distribution to shareholders

Distribution of profit earned in the prior period -
ca rryforward
Equity as at 31 December 2015

Profit for the period

Dividend distribution to shareholders
Distribution of profit earned in the previous period -

carryforward
Equity as at 31 December 2016 tti161"632

Retai ned
profit

Total

Cquitv

L2s93 327

2009 940
(1036419)

220L842

71t86268

2 009 940
(1036419)

2 ?_Ot 842



ADDITIONAL INFORMATION TO THE FINANCIAT STATEMENTS
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION AND NOTES

1. Restatement of financial stqtements for compliance with IFRS

Restatement of comparativb figures for the statement of Financial position.

ASSETS

Fixed assets

Propefty, plant and equipment l

Intangible assets

Perpetual usufruct of land

Financial assets in other entities
Deferred tax assets

Total fixed assets

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables

including : VAT receivoble

Income tax receivable

Trade accounts receivable from related entities
lncome tax receivables

Prepayments and accrued income

Short-term investments

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current a$sets

Total assets

1 January 2015

before Restatement

resGtement Accountinp Act

I January 20ts

Restatement after

IFRS restatement

4

5

6

7

8

10

11

11

11

11

L2

t3
13

78 252 930

t4 443

746 970

1,04 525 r79 480

(686390)

686 390

17 576 540

t4 443

686 390

746 970

284 00s

19 128 868 r79 AaO 19 308 348

) J!' zUI

8 82s 688

192 910

600 41,s

78 908

I 98 2s0 (1982s0)

r.98 250

5 919 201

8 82s 688

792 910

500 415

78 908

198 250

L5 52246r Ls 62246r

3475L329 L79 480 34 930 809
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Financial statements of YSD

1 January 2015

before Restatement

restatement AccountinE Act

Eestatement

IFRS

1 January 2015

after

restatement

EqU|TY AND LIABII,ITIES

Equity

Share capital

Sha re

premrum

Other reserve capital

Financial result for the current year

Retained earnings

Total equity

Non-current liabilitiers

LOans

Loan from related entities

Deferred tax liability

Provision for other liabilities

Other financial liabilities

Non-current accrued expenses and deferred income

Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

including: vAT pdyoble

personal income tox

Sociol security office

Speciol funds
Trade accounts payable to related entities

Loans and borrowings payable

Loans payable to related entities

Other financial liabilities

Employee benefits payable

Income tax payable

Current accrued expenses and deferred income

Total current liabilities

Total equity and liiabilities

t4
t4
L4

L4

t4

16

16

8

9

16

L2

1 000 000

3 607 059

6 500 000

2073 4r9 (s871s0)

(6s00000)

(1486268)

7 986 268

1 000 000

3 607 059

0

0

7 986 268

L3 L80 477 {s87150) 12 593 327

2s94 677

8220

982 886

971721

+r t>5

477 209

2 594 677

49 973

47L209
982 886

97L72r

18 8926 27L

466 744

s6 876

24 r95
6 t6Z t24

433 798

s01 485

155 111

328882

(2197s4]|

179 179

473 422

(11s11s)

8706 sr1

119 119

466 744

56 876

24 r95
6 762724

433798
974 907

35 992

328882

18

16

16

16

I
18

L2

34870 448 34 930 809
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Financial statemehts of

Restatement of comparAtive figures for the Statement of Financial position.

31 December 2015

before Restatement

restatement Accountinq Act

Restatement

IFRS

31 December 2015

after

restatement

ASSETS

Fixed assets

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Perpetual usufruct of land

Financial assets in other entities
Deferred tax assets

Total fixed assets

Current assets

I nventories

Trade and other receivables

including : VAT receivoble

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

Total assets

Trade accounts receivable fromi related entities
lncome tax receivables

Prepayments and accrued inconpe

Short-term investments

4

t

D

7

8

2I L25 !70

5 s80

80 651 191096

17L74'.t0)

1tt 410

20 413760

5 580

77r410

271747

2tzLL 401 191 096 27 402497

10

11

11

11

t2
13

13

7 234090

8 633 422

363 398

t2067s6

139 677

1,O37 617 1t0376!71

t037 617

7 234090

8 633 422

363 368

1206 7s6

!5tDI/

1037 677

18 2s1 553 18 251 563

39 462964 191 096 39 554 060
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Financial :rtateDe[ts o'[ 15 (w zlotvch)

31 December 2015

before Restatement

restatement Accountine Act

qestatement

_tFRS

:11 December 2015

after

testatement

EqUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Share capital

Share

premrum

Other reserve capital

Undistributed result of prior years

Financial result of the current year

Total equity

Non-current liabilities

Loans

Loans from related entities

Deferred tax liability
Provision for other liabilities

Other financial liabilities

Non-current accrued expenses and deferred income

Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

including: VAT pdyoble

personal income tox

Social Security oJlice

Special funds
Trade accounts payable to related entities

Loans payable

Loans payable to related entities

Other financial liabilities

Employee benefits payable

Income tax payable

Current accrued expenses and deferred income

Total current liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

t4 1 000 000,00

L4 3 607 059

14 7 537 000

t4 2r35r33

L4 279 LgL

(s871s0)

( 12s193)

17L2343l.

(7s37000)

587150

(2009940)

8 959 790

1 000 000

3 607 059

0

8 9s9 790

13 s66 849

16

16

8

9

16

t2

5 698 145

105 s88

2 I74 535

791 656

24 003

498 809

5 698 145

L29 59r
498 809

2 174 535

/vt o50

8769 923 5228t2 I 292736

18 10 428 083

138 883

609 720

63 589

18 760 463

t6 3 490 136

16

16 72L500
18 555 s87

18 248324
t2 209757

(726334].

s06 961

70 301749

138 883

609 720

63 s89

760 463

3 490 136

72t 500

L 062 547

248324
209 757

16 413 849 380627 7.6 794 476

39 462964 191 096 39 6s4 050

22



Fina11!!Al_q!a!ements of

Restatement of comparatiye figures for the statement of comprehensive Income.

Continuing operations
Sales revenue

Revenue on the saie of products
Revenue on the sale of services
Revenue on the sale of goods apd materials
Change in product inventories
Production cost of products for the entity,s own purposes

Sales revenue

Other revenue

Change in product invL.ntories

Manufacturing cost of products for the entity,s own purposes
Amortisation and depreciation
Consumption of materials and !nergy
External services

Taxes and charges

Payroll

Social security contributions and other benefits
Other prime costs

Value of goods and materials soto

Other costs

Total operating expenses

Gain on operating acrtivities

Finance income

Finance cost

Net finance income and cost

Earnings before taxes

Income tax

Net profit

Other net comprehensive rncome

Total comprehensive irEome

Note

31 December 2015

before

testatement

19 79 806 548
1q

19 1 s85 082

L9 l2s29l
19 (1,20941

Restatement

Accountine Act

Restatement

IFRS

(840e0)

84 090

z >z)
12094

31 December 2015

after

restatement

79 722 458

84 090

1 s85 082

8t 377 007 L4 6i23 81 391 630

19
10

12866467]l
(s811-0201)

(4134420)

(284980)

(9216936)

(22764s2]|

(23s230)

(131;90s7)

(s3028)

20 1 378 933 (93420) - 1 285 s13

(zs2s)

\12094)

(78s40771) (61139) (1462:!) (78615s33)

(61:r39)

(2s2e)

(72os4)
(2866467]|

(s8110201)

(4r344201

(284980)

(s218o7sl

(22764s21

(23923o)

(13seos7)
(s3028)

22

23

30 953

(1336613)
JU v)-1

(1335613)

(13os6se) (13os6sei

2 909 s10 (1s45s9) _ 27s4gsr

24 17743771 299-66 (74sOLLl

2 13s 133 (12s193) - 2OO994O

2135133 2 009 940
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Restatement of comparative figures for the Cash Flow Statement.

31 December 2015

approved

31 llecember 2015

before

restatement

Restatemeni

IFRS

31 December 2015

afte I

festatement

2 135 133

2866 467

2 447

520 233
(3s7758)

I2r242
(1314889)

(4740761

3 983 864
l2cooal I

(477630r.

6 705 063

(451s107)

(169120)

(11s396)

(373s88)

(1036419)

477 630
(3084e)

lr248t42l
84L 8r4

(2447)

839 367

198 250

1 040 054

Adjustment

(r272\3)
rl 1 c?qAl

123874r.

875 860

23 874

633 2s0

(760453)

727273

2 135 133

2a66 467

1124766].

404 837
r?q776q\

97358

(131488s)

(414076],

4 859 724

(336087)

(4776301

7 338 313

r175 786

746 970

(78e8326)

(s37ss70)

(47so7l
l1 1 q?qRt

(373e88)

(103641s)

477 630
(3084e)

ltL20929l
84r 874

12447].

839 367

198 250

1 040 064

(213s133)

2 754 952

43389

93420
(11615)

745 07r

2754 952

2a56 467

ltz+ tool
404 837

(3s7768].

L40 757

(1314889)

(474076].

4 953 r44
(347703]|

(74s011)

(477630)

7 338374

rt75 186

746 970

(7898326)

(s37ss70)

141907)

I ?7?qRRl

(1036419)

477 630
(3084e)

lLt2O929l
84t 8r4

\24471
839 367

198 250

1 040 064

Continuing operations
Operating activities
Net profit

Gross profit on continuing operations

Adjustment by:

Am orti sati o n o nd d e preci ation

Gain (loss) on foreign exchange

Interest and profit sharint (dividends)

Gain (loss) on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Change in provisions

Change in inventories
ah.n'p in raroivahlp<

change in liabilities

Change in prepayments and accruals

lncome tdx paid

Other adjustments

Net cash from operatirrg activities

Investing activities
Inflows from the sale of property, plant, equipment

and intangible assets

lnflows from the sale of financial assets

Acquisition from the sale of property, plant, equipment

and intangible assets

Acquisition of financial assets

Net cash from investing activities

Financing activities
Loans

Repayment of loans received

Payments under financial lease agreements

Interest paid

Dividends and other payments to shareholders

Other financial outflows

Net cash from financing activities
Change in cash and car;h equivalents

Net exchange difference

Balance-sheet change in cash

Cash and cash equivalents as at 1 January 2015

Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 2015

357 768 7478018,42

746 970

lc71 qRaq\ ()1'7949)\

The restatement of comparative figures in Note 1 arises from the fact that the Company decided to recognize provisions for

employee benefits such as: accrued holiday entitlement, jubilee, and retirement gratuity.

As the provision was not recognised in prior years, comparative figures for 2OI4 and 2015 pertaining to the provision

have been restated to maintain comparativeness of particula

items in the Financial Statements.

For the purpose of comparativeness, restated have been also comparative figures for purchase bonuses which

were recognized useld the accrual principle in the year in which the Company was credited under a relevant credit note.
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Eng[gialstatemehts of "Polipak" sp'z o.o. for the period beFinnins 01 Januarv 2015 and ending 31 December 2016 (w zlotvch]

2. Information on business segments

The Company prepares its financial statements independently, and the company's core business segment is production packaging
polyethylene packaglng, which generates 99% of its revenue.
Profit or loss on other business comprises trade revenue or trade expenses
related to the aforementioned core business segment .

TheCompanyoperateswithinonegeographicregion,i.e.Poland;itisalsowhereall assets of theCompanvarelocated.

3. Business seasonality and cyclicality.

The company's nranufacturing operations are distributed uniformly over the year, although the demand for our products tends
to increase in sumrner rnonths, i.e, July and August. This trend, however, is not significant enough to be indicative of any seasonality
in our industrv.

4. Property, plant and equripment

3L,t2.20t6 3L.L2.20L5 01.01.2015

Lano

Buildings, premises, and civil engineering structures
Technical equipment and machinery
Motor vehicles

Other property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment under construction
Total property, plant and equipment

8 247 786
22 23.4 7I9

448 765

249 794
2 209 L95

B 310 541

tt 505 467

373 944
2I4 280

9 528

6 570 881

9 564 500

161 570

227 497

7 0s2092
33 369 060 20 4L37t6O t7 s76 540

ln 2016, the company entered into the investment agreement with GG Technology, under which the company made
a commitment to purcha:;e four film making machines and two printing modules in 2017.
The amount of the contractual commitment was set at usD 264,000, of which 30% was prepaid in 2016.
Theremainingportionofthecommitment,i.e.usDlss,gSo (PLNTTT,r4owhentranslatedattheexchangerateof
31 December 201f;), will be paid after the delivery of the machines, which is scheduled for Januarv 2017.

The following is the gross vdlue of fully depreciated property, plant and equipment that is stilt in use:

as at 1 January 2015 pLN 3 960 813
as at 31 December 2015 pLN 6 293 599
as at 31 December 2016 pLN 6 331 815

As at 1 January 20'.15,37 December 2015 and 3L December 2016, items of property, plant and equipment which include sealing
machines,inventorynos'268,259and282,value: PLN 466s466.96,wereenteredintothepledgeRegister(pledgeamount: EUR10965o0)

for Bank Handlowy w warszawie by the District court for Poznafi Nowe fvliasto and wilda in poznari, 7th commercial Division.

The following is the carrying value of property, plant and equipment held under the finance lease agreements:

as at 1 January 2015

as at 3l- December 2015

PLN 2 053 233.1 0

PtN 3 405 780.93
as at 31 December :2016 pLN 2 846 Si7.74

The finance lease agreernents are for 3 motor vehicles used for the company's business purposes,
2 film making machines, 3 sealing machines, and a forklift truck.
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Financial litatements of qly'L4S!y!D

Changes in property, plant and equipment by category

GROSS VALUE

OF PROPERTY, PLAN']I

AND EQUIPMENT

Gross value as at
1 January 2015

I ncrease:

acquisition
buying out a lease

reclassification

Decrease:

sa te

retirement
reclassification

Gross value as at
31 December 2015

I ncrease:

acq u isition

buying out a lease

reclassificati on

Decrease:

sa te

retirement
recl assification

Gross value as at
31 December 2016

Accumulated

depreciation and

impairment losses

as at 1 January 2015

I ncrease:

depreciation for the year

recl a ssifi catio n

Decrease:

sale

retireme nt

reclassification

Accumulated

depreciation and
impairment losses

as at 31 December 2015

buildings,
premrses

and civil technical
enBineering equipment
structures andmachinery

other
motor property, plant
vehicles and equipment

401 055

other
proirerty, plant
and equipment Total

1.052092 30 129 9938 699 329 t9 47ra26 505 691

:t 995 965

1 995 955

10 695 294

7 739 80L
2730 022

3 014 508
'r 995 270

4 0r8 201.

1 915 068

ro7 862

r 99s 270

23 L9? 426

308 631

38 000

270 63L

47 682
41 682

766 640

18 590

18 590

419 645

9 528
9 528

L O52 092

r 052 092

9 528

70 072 515

4 792 rO5

3 285 139

r 995 270

5 7r7 974

1.967 749

ro7 862

3047 363

35 084 534

237 644

237 644

10 925 938

13 778 034
13 778 034

/ 55 555

680 197

55 136

36 236 L27

164 650

164 650

931 290

tltJ)

72 r95

491 840

I lno 10c

9 528

J 526

2209 7.95

16 455 7t9
L6 455 7r9

744 86r
680 197

)J l-50

9 528

s0 795 392

Changes in property, plant and equipment by category

buildings,
premises

and civil technical

engineerinB equipment
structures andmachinery

2 t28 448 9 907 326

other
motor property, plant

vehicles and equipment

344 Lzr 173 558

other
propenty, plant

and equipment Total

0 12 553 453

2s6 30s

256 305

2 384 753

3 138 791

2 490 860
647 93L

1 358 159

668 692

41 535

647 93L

71" L44

77 744

22 569
22 569

31 807

31 807

3 498047

2 850 116

647 931

7 380 727

691 26r
41 535

647 93L

L4 670 77311 687 958 392 697 20s 36s
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I ncrease:

depreciation for the year

reclassification

Decrease:

sale

retirement
reclassificati on

Accumulated

depreciation and
impairment losses

as at 31 December 20:16

Net book value:

as at 1 January 2015

as at 31 December 2015

as at 31 December 2015

lmpairment losses

Computer software

Total intangible assets

Change in intangible assets

GROSS VALUE

OF INTANGIBTE ASSET!;

Gross value as at 1 January:2015

I ncrease:

acq uisition

reclassification

Decrease:

sa le

retirement
reclassification

Gross value as at
31 December 2015

I ncrease:

acq uisition

reclassification
Decrease:

sale

retirement
reclassification

Gross value as at
31 December 2016

294 399
294 399

5 s70 881

8 310 541

I 247 786

2732877
2 732 81J

399 427

344 29L

55 136

9 554 500

Lt 505 467

22 2L4 779

90 428

90 428

L61.570

373944
448 165

37 281:

37 28r

2679 Ls2 14 021 408 483 r25 242 646

227 497

21.4 280
249 r94

3L.t2,20L6

37 886

37 886

computer
software

370 823

7 488

7 488

378 311

s7 688

s7 688

43s 999

3 1s4 985

3 154 985

399 427

344 297

55 136

t7 426332

L05205t2 t7 576540
9 52t8 20 4L3760

2 209 1915 33 369 060

In the accounting periods from 1 January through 31 December 2015 and from 1- January to 31 December 2016,
the Company did not identify the need for recognizing impairment losses in relation to property, plant and equipment.

5. Intangible assets

3L,L2.20L5 01.01,2015

) 5du

s 580

L4 443

L4 443

Total

370 823

7 488
7 488

378 311

s7 688

s7 688

43s 999



Financial statements of -g-oIEElp.Z-S4J9r-!he l€-Ilv-Zlg!rcD

Accumulated

amortisation and

impairment losses

as at 1 January 2015

I ncrease:

amortisation for the year

reclassification

Decrease:

sa re

retirement
reclassification

Accumulated

amortisation and
impairment losses

as at 31 December 21015

I ncrease:

amortisation for the year

reclassificatio n

Decrease:

sa le

retirement
reclassification

Accumulated

amortisation and

impairment losses

as at 31 December 2016

Net book value:

as at 1 January 2015

as at 31 December i!015

as at 31 December :1016

6. Perpetual usufruct right

The Company uses state-owned land of 23 744 m2,located at Sroda Wielkopolska, ul. Harcerska 16.

computer
software

355 380

ao 5)a

16 351

372737

25 381

25 381

3981.12

L4 443

5 580

37 886

746 1 70

(744s70)

(2000)

Total

356 380

16 351

ao 5)r

37273L

25 381
25 381

398 112

14 443

5 s80

37 886

746 970

746 970

Perpetual usufruct right - value at acquisition price

7. Investments in other entities

Interests and loans advanced

Beginning of period

I ncrease

Set-off against liabilities

Decrease

End of period

3t.t2.2016

717 4tO

3r.t12.20r5 01.01.2015

7tr 4r0 686 390

3t.t2.20L6 3r.tit.2015 01,,01,2015

The Company hacl a 40% participation interest of PLN 2 000 and PLN 744 970 in loans advanced to PDI-Flex Sp. z o.o. with its head ofl'ice

at Sroda Wielkopolska; PDI-Flex Sp. z o.o. was active in the fielcls of flexographic printing on film and manufacturing of polyethylene packaging.

In April 2015, the Extraordinary fMeeting of Shareholders of PDI-Flex Sp. z o.o. adopted the resolution imposing the obligation

on the shareholders to make additional contributions, and allowing this obligation to be fulfilled by way of mutual set-off of receivables.

The relevant set-off agreement was signed, under which debts owed by PDI-Flex Sp. z o.o. as at 29 April 2015 to the shareholder (Polipak)

anddebtsowedbyPolipakSp.zo.o.toPDl-FlexSp.zo.o.havebecomefullyextinguishedandsettledbyset-offof PLN T84000undertheagreement.
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8. Deferred tax

Deferred incDme tax as at 31 December results from the following items:

Deferred tax asset components

Assets

Unrealised foreign exchange losses on trade receivables

Lidbilities

Provisions for employee benefits
Unrealised foreign exchange losses on loans

Unrealised foreign exchange losses on trade payables

Liabilities for social security contributions, paid after the balance sheet date
Payroll liabilities
Liabilities for interest on loans, paid after the balance sheet date
Other

Deferred tax liability cotnponents

Assets

Net value of property, plant and equipment under finance lease
Unrealised foreign exchange gains on trade receivables

Interest accrued on trade receivables

Liabilities

Unrealised foreign exchange gains on trade payables

Accrued bonuses from suppliers

Lease payments

9. Provisions for other liabilities

Provision for employee trenefits
i nclud i ng : non-curre nt

cLtrrent

10. Inventories

Materials

Commodities

Finished products

Work in progress

As at 1 January 2015,31 December 2015 and 31 December 2016, the Company's inventories were not pledged
as security for its liabilities.

3L.r2.20t6 3t.L2.20r5 01.01.2015
(restated (restated

figures) figures)

2398 055d

207 84r
0

26 s68

67 907

) 5/b
9 3s9

L9

191 096

0

OJIS

58 875

t2 405

0

0

r79 480

38743
r0 722

50 072

4 988

0

0

317 608 27I747 284 005

540 850

2 546
51

8 197
(24844)

(410769)

647 098
940

0

7 796
24003

(ss0246)

01.01.2015

figures)

U

8220
0

U

41753

31-.t2.20L6 3I.L2.20L5
(restated

fieures)

116 031 t29 597 49 973

3L.r2.20L6 3L.L2.20r5
(restated

figures)

1 093 900 1 005 770

485 679 498 809
608 221 506 961

3],I2.20L6

7 775 630

2 060 878

r.809 089

31..L2.20L5

5 527 868

4 705

874 0!;7

827 460

01.01.2015
(restated

figures)

944 63L
477 209

473 422

01.01,2015

4 7887r8
26 437

1 066 s37

oJ/ )uv
11 645 597 7 234090 5 919 201
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11, Trade and other receivables

37.72.20t6 3I.12.20L5 01.01,.2015

Trade accounts receivable from related entities

Trade accounts receivable from other entities

Other receivables

VAT receivable

Valuatlon allowances on receivables

Current receivables

Trade receivables are recognised at originally invoiced amounts.

Account receivable payments are usually due within 30,45 or 60 days (for clients from the Group).

Valuation allowances on receivables are made based on individual assessment of probability of payment.

The following were changes in valuation allowances on receivables:

Changes in valuation allowances on receivables

Beginning of period

I ncreaSe

End of period

The following is the ageing structure oftrade receivables which are past due but not impaired:

Past due but collectible

<30 days

I IaO ZtJ

7 026 299

r 204 300

7 2L4286 1 2t06 7!;6 600 415

7 r29 68s

3 r75
1 591 200

8 2.61 290

87:\4
363 398

8 624 038

I 740

192 910

4724 050 81;33 422 8 825 588

20L5

57 944
(s7e44)

20 r.6

As at:
1 January 2015

31 December 2015

31 December 2016

Currency structure of current trade receivables

Receivables in local currency
Receivables in foreign currencies

Receivables in EUR

Receivables in USD

for the period from 1 January through 31 December 2015

for the period from 1 January through 31 December 2016

This specific structure of the receivables exposes the Company to foreign currency risks, which the Company tries to mitigate, primarily

by balancing currency items of receivables and payables stated in foreign currencies .

The following are realised foreign exchange losses and gains recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive lncome

under finance cost or income. resoectivelv:

finance

rncome

440 280

651. 176

30-60 days 60-90 days 90-120 day:; > 120 days

794 259 233 632 677 44737
754 757 50 453

25 370 - :135 555

37.r2.20L6 3r.t2.20r5 01.01.2015

r0 762 196 6 619 299 7 337 973

358L775 2848747 1.892479
L4 343 970 9 468 046 9 224 452

3t.L2,20L6 31'Lz20r5 01.01.2015

3 581 795 2848747 ra92479

3 s81 795 2848747 r 897 479

finance

cost

607773

680881
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11,1. Income tax rreceivable

3r.L2.20r6 31.12,201$ 01,01.2015

Income tax receivirble

Total

12. Transactions with related entities

Pa rent
Other related entities

Pa rent
Other related entities

Pa rent
Other related entities

Total

Purchase'frctm:

Pa rent
Other related entities

Total

Loans odvanced to:
Parent

Subsid ia ry

Associated entity
Joint venture
Other related entities

18 785

11 895

as at 31.12.2015

3L.72.20t6 aL.!z,zu15

3L.12.2076 3LI2.2075
Received in

the period

Accumulated

oatance

Received in

the period

Accumulated

oalance
LOOnS feCetvea,

Su bsidia ry

Associated entity
Joint venture
Other felated entitie

13 s00 00( 13 s00 000

13 s00 00( 13 500 00(
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Financial :itatements of "lglipak" Sp, z o,o. forjhepeliod beginnine 01 Januarv 2015 and endine 31 December 2016 {w zlotvch)

12.1. Prepayments and accrued income - assets

3:1,L2,20L6

38 90s

ZD J5U

15 169

31,L2,20r5 01.0L.2015

40 424
227 30

70 989

5 534

45 94r
22 067

10 900

tnsurance

Annual service fee of Exact

Spare parts

Other

12.2. Accruals and deferred income - liabilities

Deferred income

subsidies to finance fixed assets

other (including fixed assets tinanced

through the Company Fund for Rehabilitation of Disabled Persons

Deferred income

non-cu rrenl:

current

in hand

at banks

deposited on the account of the Company Employee Benefit Fund

deposited on the account ofthe Company Fund for Rehabilitation of Disabled Persons

in local currency

in foreign currencies

Cash in EUR

Cash in USD

80 404 :139 677 78 908

3L,L2,20L6 3L,L2,20:.15 01.01.2015

295 359

554 87I

.311 825

589 587

375 984

924 620
850 230 Lt0o7 4t2 1 300 504

67L 487

178743
79r 656

zo9 756

97L 722

328 882
850 230 Lt0OL 4L2

Subsidies received by the Company are recognised as deferred income in "Accruals and deferred income".

In 2013, the Comprany contracted the loan with Bank Handlowy, with 10% financial support for energy efficiency, for the total amount of

USD107 165(PLN453 177.94)forthreesealingmachines, of whichproceedsof PLN 248367.06 remainedunsettledasat3lDecernber2016.
In 2016, the Company received funding from the District Labour Office to finance the purchase of forklift trucks in the net amount
of PLN 48 780.48, of which proceeds of PLN 46 991.87 remained unsettled as at 31 December 2016.

Proceeds of PLN 530 675.52 are from reductions and exemptions to which the Company became entitled under

the Disabled Professional and Social Rehabilitation and Emolovment Act.

HavingfundsavailableintheCompanyFundforRehabilitationof Disablecl PersonsmakesitpossiblefortheCompanytomaintain
its employment rate which the Company has been continuously maintaining since its loss of its supported employment enterprise status,

and which the Company intends to maintain in the future,

Subsidies for items of the assets are gradually recognised in profit as lnconle through periods

proportionally to depreciation charges for the asset components.

13, Cash and cash equivalents

3r,r2.20t6

7 398

155 453

ro 299

6r 026

?LI2.20L5 01,01.2015

1 300 604

4 433

949 543

62.280

ZJ 5OI

3 330

r24 549

43 622

26 748
234 L76 t03'1t 6L7 198 250

2r4 8tO
19 366

1 035 095

2- izz
r9r 920

6 329
234 t76 to3'jt 617 198 2s0

58

4 572

592 1 485

Excepts funds deposited on the accounts ofthe Company Employee Benefit Fund and of the Company Fund for Rehabilitation of Disablerj Persons,

the Company has no funds of limited availability. As far as cash is concerned, concentration of credit risk is limited;the Company maintains
cash in several recognised financial institutions, i e. BZ WBK, Bank llandlowy, Deutsche Bank and BGZ BNP Paribas.
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Finalcial st:Ilernents of "Polipak" sp. z o.o. for:lhe perjod beginnine 01 Januanv 2Olloand endine 31 December 2016 (w zlotvch)

14. Share capital

As at 31 December 2016, tire share (initial) capital of polipak sp. z o.o. was pLN 1 o0o ooo
and comprises:

PLN 700 000 - 7 000 shares of pLN 100 each, held by sarantis polska s.A. of piaseczno

PLN 300 000 - 3 000 sfrares held by GNI Investments Grzegoe Nowak sp.j. of pozna6

Pursuant to the company's Articles of Association of 11 April 2005, executed in the form of a notary,s deed entered into the roll of deeds under no.
A/2903/2005' the supplL'mentary capital is the excess amount over the par value of the shares of ppH "GG plast" Grzegorz Nowak i Wspdlnicy Sp. J.
PPH "GG Plast" Grzegorz Nowak i wsp6lnicy Spdtka jawna transformed into cG plast spdika z o.o. .

3L.t2.20L6 31.12.2015 01.01.201s

Retained earnings include the following items:

supplementary capital
reserve capital
net profit
undistributed profit of prior years

Total retained earnings

15. Proposed di:;tribution of the Company's profit for 201b

overdraft facility - CH

overdraft facility - DB

investment loan - CH

investment loan - PFP

loan for current purpo:;es - Sarantis polska

overdraft facility - Blrlp paribas

investment loan - Sarantis polska

non-current liabilities
current liabilities

in local currency
in foreign currencies (E[JR)

3 607 059

3L,L2,207.6

Z fJ) ]J5

7 537 000

2 201 842

171.23431

3 607 0:;9

31.12.2015
(restated

figures)

7 537 000

2 009 940

(s871s0)

3 607 059

01.01.2015
(restated

figures)

5 500 000

r 486 268

11 161 532 8 959 791 7 986268

Pursuant to the cornpany's Articles of Association, the Board of Directors proposes that the net profit of pLN 2 2or 842.02for 2016 should be distributed as f(
of PLN 2 2O.L 842.02.f or 20i.6 should be distributed as forrows:

40% among the Company's shareholders, in proportion to the number of shares hero
60% for the reserve capital

16. Financial liabilitie:;

15.1. Loans piryabk:

3t,12.20t6

3 080 779

3 100 973

r 446 329

279 780

3 000 000

9 028 490
10 500 000

3t.L2,2015

4 025 167

2 575 402
2 206 298

387 420

01.01.2015

994 €i63

4 8s9 718

3 019 959

483 060

30 436 351 9 188 281 9 357 401

31.12.2016

13 678 .L40

16 758 2L7
5 698 145

3 490 136

2 594 677

6 762 724

?L.I2.2075 01.01.2015

30 436 3s1 9 188 281 9 357 401

31.12.2016 31.12.2015 01.01.2015

19 930 200

10 506 151

1 285 684
7 902 597

2 IO2974
7 254 426

30 435 351 9 188 281 9 357 40I

3t.L2,2016

2 374 808

3L,I2.20t5 01.01.2015

loan in EUR
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16.2. Loans payable to related entities

?1..r2.20L6 3t.t2.20ts 01.01.201s

3 000 000

10 t;00 000
Sarantis Polska SiA - loan for current purposes

Sarantis Polska S;A - investment loan
13 500 000

As at 31 December 2016, the Company had loans provided bythe followings banks:

1. Deutsche Bank

overdraft facility under agreement no. KltB\0900765 of 08.01.2009, with the most recent annex of 2I.I2.20I5,
and agreement no. KllB\0900775 of 08.01.2009, with the most recent annex of 3I.I2.2OI5.

TheBankgranted overdraftlinesofEUR500000andPLNl000000totheCompany,forthepurposeoffinancingcurrentoperations.
Outstanding balance:; for those lines were EUR 477 822.20 and PLN 987 087.47 as at 3L December 2016.

The Bank charged interest on the outstanding balance at a variable rate of
EURIBOR/WIBOR 1M plus bank margin of 1.1 p.p. per annum.

The lines are secured with:

real property mortgage, up to PLN 3 750 000,

assignment of rights underthe real property insurance policyfor PLN 2 500 000

The lines were made available until 05 January 2017. The Company has repaid the loan in full.

The loan agreement has been terminated.

2. Bank Handlowy

a) dual currency overdraftfacility under agreement no. BKD/KR-RB|OOO09742I/O757II4,with the most recent annex of30.12.2016.

The Bank granted the line of PLN 8 500 000 to the Company, for the purpose of financing current operations.

The outstanding balance for the line was EUR 696 378.63 as at 31 December 2016. The line remains available until 30 June 2017.

The Bank charged interest on the outstanding balance at a variable rate of

EURIBOR/WIBORlMplusbankmarginof 1.1 p.p. perannum,front-end-feeofO.2%ofthegrantedlimit

and administration fele of PLN 100.

The annex of 30.12.2016 changes the bank's margin to 0.95% and front-end-fee to 0.15%

The line is secured with:

real property mortgage, up to PLN 10 652 000,

assignment of rights under the real property insurance policy for PLN 8 500 000,

notarised statement on submission to collection proceedings for up to PLN 8 500 000

b) investment loan of EUR 223 650 for the purchase ofthe Elba sealing machine under

energy loan agreement no. BDK/KR-E/000O91,42I/OOI4/I3 of 24.06.2073. The bank charges interest at a variable rate

of EURIBOR 1M plus margin of 2.3 p.ps. The Bank charged the administration fee of PLN 350.

The loan is secured with the registered pledge on the said machine which is entered into books as an item offixed assets under no. 268.

Pledge value: EUR 248 000. Loan term:60 months.

The outstanding balance for the loan is tiUR 58 918 as at 31 December 2016

c) investment loan of EUR 388 000 for the purchase of Rollomat sealing machine under

energy loan agreem€lnt no.: BDK/KR-E/0)0j9L421,/0O27 /73 of 77 .07.2073.

The bank charges interest at a variable rate of EURIBOR plus margin of 2.3 p.p.

Moreover, the bank charged the administration fee of PLN 1 050.

The loan is secured with the registered pledge on the said machine which is entered into books as an item of fixed asset sunder no. 269,

Pledge value: EUR 3tl8 000. Loan term: 60 months.

The outstanding balarnce for the loan is EUR 108 150 as at 3L December 2016.

d) investment loan of EUR 460 000 for the purchase of the Coemter sealing machine under

energy loan agreement no.: BDK/KR-E/0OOO9742I/OO58h 3 of 05.11.2013.

The bank charges lnterest at a variable rate of EURIBOR 1M plus margin of 2.0 p ps.

The bank charged the administration fee of PLN 1 750.

The loan is secured with the registered pledge on the said machine which is entered into books as an item offixed assets under no.282.

Pledge value: EUR 460 000. Loan term: 60 months.

The outstanding balance for the loan is EUR 159 860 as at 31 December 2016.

3. BGZ BNP Paribas

Overdraft facility under agreement no. WAR/3012/I6/I47/CB z 07.07 .2076. The Bank granted the line

of PLN 10 000 000 tc, the Company, for the purposes of financing current operations. The outstanding balance was

PLN 5 163 332.68 plus EUR 873 679.2I as at 31 December 2016 . The line remains available until 29 June 2017.

The Bank charges interest on the outstanding balance at a variable rate ofWlBOR 1M plus

bankmarginof l0p.p.perannumforthePLNportionand EURlBOR3Mplusbankmarginof 1.5p.p.perannum
for the EUR portion

The line is secured with:
. civil-law guarantee from Sarantis Polska SA for up to PLN 15 000 000, together with
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the Guarantor's statement on submission to collection proceedings,
. corporate guarantee from Sarantis polska SA for up to pLN 10 O0O OOO.

'Borrower'sstatementonsubmissiontocollectionproceedingsasfarasthepecuniaryobligationundertheagreementrsconcerned,
tor up to PLN 15 000 000.

4. Polska Fundacja Przeclsiqbiorczo5ci

Polska Fundacja przedsit2biorczosci granted the repayable roan of pLN 5oo ooo.
The loan was granted under agreement no.i L3'/IOB/OL5/2OI4 29.Og.ZO1,4

I he loan bears interest at the fixed rcte of 25% p.a. Loan term: 60 months.
The loan is secured with ther real property mortgage for up to pLN 1 O0O OOO.

The loan has been used for partial financing of production & warehouse building construction costs.
The outstanding balance for the loan was pLN 279 7go as at 31 December 20r-6.

5. Sarantis Poiska S.A. of Piaseczno

The Company receivecl the loan from Sarantis Polska S.A. under the following two agreements:
- loanagreemeti.of 2.9oT2016,withtheannexof 24.03,2016underwhichSarantisgrantedtheloanof pLN 30oooOO

for Polipak to finanr:e its current operations. The loan repayment deadline is 27 Januarv 2017.
- loan agreementof 2,4.03.20L6, under which Sarantis granted the loan for the total amount of pLN 12 400 000

to be disbursed in multiple disbursement in amounts and on dates to be agreed bythe parties on an on-going basis.
The loan repayment deadline is 31 December 2or7,rhe loan is for current and investing business activities.
The outstanding balance forthe roan is pLN 10 500 o0o as at 31 December 2016.
The Lender is entitled to interest on the loans at a variable rate of
wlBoRlM plus marginof 1,1 p.p.perannum,whichinterestaccruesattheendof eachmonthandisduebythel0thdayofthefollowingmonth.
Total interest on thr: loans was pLN ZO9 LBT.SI in 20L6.

on2o'o1'2017'theExtraordinaryMeetinBofshareholdersof Polipakadoptedtheresolutiontoextendtheloandeadlineuntil 31.o1.2oL8andchangethe
interest rate which sharr be wrBoR 1M + 1 pp. starting with i. February 2017
Therefore, the liability for the two loans is presented as non-current riabilitv
in the Statement of financial oosition.

l]ankHandlowy,whileadvancinginvestmentloansreferredtoinitems 2b,2cand2d,imposedadditional financial obligations
on the company, which obligations the cornpany undertook to meet during the term of the loan agreements.
The covenants included in the loan agreements have been violated,
as the Debt to EBIDTA ratio, which is calculated according to the following formula specified in the agreements:
(Non-current loan p:ryabrer + riabirities from the issue of the debt securities
+ other non-current financial liabilities + current loan oavable +
current liabilities from the issue of debt securities + other current financial liabilities
/ (Profit(loss) on operating activities - gain on the sale of non-financial fixed assets + loss on the sale of non-financial
fixed assets + depreciation) should have been rnaximum 3 instead of 4.92 at the balance sheet date.
Theoutstandingbalancel'ortheinvestmentloanswasEUR326g2g asat31 December2016,orplN144632g.47
upon translation at the exchange rate of 31.12.20L6, of which PLN 644 206.27 was a non-current portion of the liability.

In the case when thel agreement is violated, the Bank js entitled to:
- request the client to establish additional collaterals for the loan.

- terminate the loans in whole or in part, and
- reduce the amount o1'thr: loan.

Given the above, the non-current portion ofthe loans have been reclassified into current liabilitjes.
After the balance sheet date, after having clarified the reasons for the vlolation, the Companv
received the letter from tfre Bank notifying that the Bank waives its rights under the Regulations
as well as its right to terminate the loans.

15.3. Finance lease

For its business operations, the Company uses the machines, equipment, and forklitt truck under finance lease agreements
with a buyout option.
The following are future minimum lease payments under the lease agreements, and net curfent value of minimum payments:

Future obligatory minimum lease payments

Liqbilities

3L.L2.20t6

Liabilities due within :L year 
678 58(;

Liabilities due within :L to 5 years 
1 755 530

Liabilities due after 5 years
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Net current value:

Liabilities due within l year

Liabilities due within 1 to 5 years

Liabilities due after 5 years

17. Financial instrunlents

The value of finanr:ial assets presented in the Statement of Financial Position relates to the following categories

of financial instrurnents specified in IAS 39:

1 - loans and receivables (L&R)

2 - financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss - intended for sale (AFW-PL)

3 - financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss - at initial recognition, identified for measurement

at fair value (AFW-V)

4 - held-to-maturity investments (H IMV)
5 - available-for-srnle financial assets (ASFS)

6 - hedging derivatives (HD)

7 - assets outside the scope of IAS 39 (Outside IAS 39)

642.270

7 579 672_

2 L6L 942

As ot 37.72.2076

'Financial instrument categories as per IAS 3!)
I oral

Note I L&R I nrw-pL I npw-v I HTMV I ASFS
I
I HD Outsidr: IAS 39

;:J",and,oans 
I

Derivative financial instrument

Derivative financial instrument

Other current

financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

14 347 L46

rtt234

I 59:1 200

0

0

0

15 938 346

0

0

0

234 r15

Total financial asset catesories L4 581 5Zt 0 0 1 591 20( 16 172 52r

As ot 37.72.2075

Fixed ossets:

Receivables and loans

Derivative financial instruments

Other non-current

financial assets

Current dssets:

Trade and other
receiva bles

Loa ns

Derivative financial instruments

Other current

financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Total financial asset
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The value of financial liabilities presented in the Statement of Financjal Position relates to the l,ollowing categories
of financial instruments s;pecified in IAS 39:

1- financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss - intended for sale (LFW-pL)
2 - financial liabllities metasured at fair value through profir or loss - at initiai recognition, identified for measurement

at fair value (|-FW-V)

3 - financial liabilities merasured at amortised cost (LAC)

4 - hedging derivatives (llD)

5 - liabilities outside the scope of tAS 39 (Outside tAS 39)

As dt 37.72.2076

*Financial instrument categories as per IAS 39

*o," d
Total

N o n-c u rre nt I i o b i I it ie s :

Loans and other debl. instruments
Finance lease

Derivative fina ncial instrurnents
Other liabilities

Current liobilities:

Trade and other
paya ores

Loans and other debt instruments
Finance lease

Derivative financia I instrunlents

1-3 678 L40

r0 229 973
L6 758 21,7

1_ 5r9 672

925 714

642 274

13 678 L40
r 5L9 672

0

0

11 155 687

L6 758 2L1"

642 270

0

40 666 324 5 Ud/ b5/ 43 753 981

As dt 37.72.2075

N o n-cu r re nt I i o b i I iti e s :

Loans and other debt instruments
Finance lease

Derivative financial instruntents
Other liabilities

Current liobilities:

Trade and other
paya bles

Loans and othef debt instrllments
Finance lease

Derivative financial instruments

5 698 145

10 250 020

3 490 135

a rtq ))a

8L2 L92

72L 50A

5 698 145

z l/+ t5J

0

0

LL 062 21.2

3 490 136

72L 500

0

0 19 438 301 3 708 227 23 L46 52
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18, Current trade and other payables

2Ot6lr2l3t

669 794

0

3t.L2.20r5 01.0L.2015
(restated (rcstoted

figurcs) figtres)

760 463

0

zo s82
3 6L3

Trade accounts payables to related entities

Other payables to related entities

Trade and other payables

including: VAT poyoble

personol income tox

Social Security Office

speciol funds
Other financial liabilities

Employee benefits payable

including: provisions fot other employee benefits

Income tax payable

Total current liabilities

Trade payables bear no interest and are settled within various deadlines. Trade payables relating to
raw materials such as granules, recycled granules, colorants and additives, cardboard boxes, labels,

Interest on late payments is paid upon a receipl of a relevant debil. note.

Currency structure of current trade payables

Local currency payables

Foreign currency payables

Payables in EUR

Payables in USD

18.1. Current income tax payable

tncome tax

including: corporote income tox

18.2. Current employee benefits payable

employee benefits

includinq: culent provisions Jor other payables

19. Sales revenue

Revenue on the sale of products

Revenue on the sale of services

Revenue on the sale of commodities and materials

Domestic sales revenue
Fnraion <2la< ra\/a11r ra

t3 L57 832 13 094 583 10 175 409

... are usually settled within 30-70 days.

31..L2,20L6 3L.L2.2AL5 01.01.2015
(restoted (restoted

Jigures) figures)

669 L94 764 463 24 t95

L0 486 493

0

167 510

679 894

78 310

642 270

L 245 977

608 221

113 898

10 301 748

0

738 883

609 720

721 500
r 062.547

506 961

24t\324

8706 5r7
0

779 179

466 744

56 876

433 798

974 907

47i 422

3s 992

3 786 067

6 418 055

4 810:r53

5 4r3 427

3 759 457

4 897 r34
ro 204 L22 t0 22ir1t74 8 056 s90

3r.L2,2016

6 418 0s5

itt.L2,20L6

113 898

3L,L2,20r5 0:1.01.2015

5 +r:5 LtZr 4897 r34

31.1:1,2015 01.01.2015

248 324 3s 992

113 898 2418ll24 35 992

ilL.L2.20t6

L 245 977

608 22L

L 062 !;47

s06 961

974 907

473 422

31.1:!.2015 01.01.2015

1 January 2016 1 lanuary 2015

31De.ember2016 3lDecember2015

96907 729 79722458
18 049 84 090

1 869 845 1 s8s 082

98795623 81 391 630

40774 497 33742895
5802r:126 47 648735
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Detailed information on the sales structure and fundamental factors that affected the sales value is presented
in the Board of Directors' Rrlport on the Contpany's operations,

20. Other operating income

1 January 2016

31 December 2016

Gains on disposal of assets:

Gain on the sale of fixed assets

Subsidies

Wage and salary subsidies, other subsidies

Depreciation of fixed asserts in the part financed with the subsidv,
funds from the Company Fund for Rehabilitation of Disabled Persons, financial support for energy efficiency

Other operating income
DOnUSeS On pUrcnaSeS

reimbursement of social s;ecurity contributions and pZU insurance premiums
inventory differences
other

Attributable to continuing operations
Attributable to abandoned operations

Other operating income includes revenues and Sains that are not directly connected with the Company's operating activities,
or which are difficult to be clirectly allocated to a right segment of operating expenses.
Thiscategoryincludeswageandsalarysubsidies forthedisabled personsemployed,financial supportfromtheLabouroffice,
gains on the sale of property, plant and equipment, damages received, and reimbursement of property and personal insurance
premiums overpaid, reversal ofvaluation allowances on receivables, impairment losses relating to fixed assets,
and inventory differences.

21. Other operating expenses

Loss on disposal of assets:

Loss on the sale offixed assets:

Other operating expetrses

costs arising from inventorV differences
donations

bad debt written-off
other

Attributable to continuing operations
Attributable to abandonetd operations

Other operating expenses include costs and losses that are not directly connected with the Company,s operating activities.
This category includes losses; on the sale offixed assets, donations (in kind and cash)
to other entities, including public benefit organisations.
Other operating expenses include also costs of valuation allowances on receivables and inventories, as well as impairment losses

1lanuary2016 1January2015

31 December 201q 31 December 2015

191 061

191 061

707 L42

493 357

2r3 785

12s 828

0

8725
31 183

85 920

LO2403L

L29 682

4 615

Z ):tJ
2 a1A

118 81 3

729 682

I January 2015

31 December 2015

(testdted

figurcs)

357 768

5)/ /O6

737 438

413 47L

)a) >o I

190 308
lzt Lou

3 774
fv f,o/

39 867

1 28s 513

53 028

3 734

4 540
3277L
11 983

55 UZd

JY
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22. Finance income
1 January 2016 L January 2015

31 De.ember2016 31 December 2015

Interest income

interest on bank deposits

interest on loans advanced

Other finance income
gain on exchange differences
gain the sale of interests in related parties

valuation allowances on interest revenue, reversed

other

Attributable to continuing operations
Attributable to abandoned operations

Finance income includes interest income on depositing, and investing in various

financial instruments. Finance income includes also gains on exchange differences.

23. Finance cost

Interest expense

interest on loans, including overdraft facilities

lease interest

interest on factorinB arrangements

interest on liabilities

Other finance cost

loss on exchange differences

bank fees and charges

costs of additional contributions to related parties

costs of the sale of interests in related parties

other

Attributable to continuing operations

Attributable to abancloned operations

Finance cost includes costs arising from the use of external sources of finance, interest, and other costs payable

under lease agreements entered bythe Company, interest on, and fees arisingfrom factoring arrangements, and interest on late

payment of liabilities, Finance cost includes also losses on exchange differences.

24. lncome tax

Income tax is calculated on gross profit, taking into account the net deferred tax effect

of temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities and their tax bases.

Currenttax anddeferredincometaxassetsandliabilitiesarecalculatedusingthetaxrateof 19%

which applies at present and is expected to apply when temporary differences

are expected to reali:;e.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unrealised tax losses

to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available

against which the derluctible temporary differences can be realised.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all temporary tax differences.
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation arisingfrom future events,

and when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits

will be required to settle the obligation; and when a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
The provisions are reviewed as at the balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate as at that date.

4 430
4 430

653

653

5 083

0

2?285
752

z2 J33

7 668

2 000

s 668

30 953

0

lJanuary 2016 lJanuary 2015

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

493i 349

40252\
79 406

7Ct 622

799

428752
397 606

30 281

865

927.1"0L

0

472 423

176 363

94 660

796 26L

5 139

864 189

47 339

30 849

784 000

2 000

1

1 336 613

0
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Under the provisions, the Company includes deferred tax liabilities
and provisions for employee benefits such as: retirement gratuity, jubilee, and accrued holiday entitlement.
Deferred tax assets and liaLrilities are recognised regardless of when the assets and liabilities are to be realised, classified
and presented as fixed assets, or as liabilitie:; and provisions for liabilities in the Balance Sheer.

The following are prinlary elements of tax liabilities for the years enrled 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2OL5:

Period

ending

3L.r2.20L6,

576 800
(se422l

Period

ending

31.t2.20L5
(restated figures)

653 135

91 876

Current income tax
Origination/reversal of temporary differences
Income tax disclosed in comprehensive income

The difference between the tax amount disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the amount calculatecl
on profit before tax results from the following items:

Financial result before tax

Tax at a rate of 19%, applicable in poland

Tax effect of non-d<lductible costs

and non-taxable
In come

Current tax liabilitv

Effective tax rate

25. Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is understood to mean a possible obligation to perform, which arises from
certain events.

The Company, however, assesses that the probability of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
is negligible with respect to the following exi:;ting liabilities:

- SuaranteefromSarantisi PolskaSAfortheliabilityunderthemulti-yearlineof creditgrantedbyBGZBNpparibas,
for PLN 15 000 000.00

- corporate guarantee fronr Gr Sarantis SA Greece to secure the liability under the multi-year line of credit
granted by BGZ BNP Paribas, for up to pLN 10 000 0OO.OO

- liabilityintheformof afinancialpenaltywhichmightbeimposedonPolipakasaresultoftheadministrativeproceedings
initiated by the Presiclent of the Energy Regulatory Off ice, case file no. OpO,451 .2O9.2OL6.MT z S.Oj .20161., upon suspicion
that the company violated its obligation to comply with the electric energy supply and consumption restrictions applicanre
between 10 August and :]1 August 2015.
As far as this incident is concerned, on 14 July 2016, the Company showed cause and explained that promptly after becomrng
awareoftheintroductionoftherationinglevel 20,theCompanystartedtoreduceitselectricc'nergyconsumptionlevels, and
first several hours during which the Company exceeded consumption was solely the result of its implementing the alignment
procedure for the entire process cycle, as well as and its unreliable consumption control system which
consisted onlyoftakingvisual readsoftheenelgyconsumption meterand ofad hocresponding.
Despite the fact that 1:he company promptly proceeded to comply with the restriction, the phasing-out procedure took a dozen
or so hours, and within the following threr: days the Company expelenceo
deviations from the restrictions, deviating by 90 kW for 1ZOO kW contracted.
underthe Energy Law Act of 10.04.1997, the president ofthe Energy Regulatory office
may impose the maximum penalty on the Company, which is 15% of the Company's annuat revenue
(the regulation is of a general nature and, as such, does not provide details as to "how much - for what").
As there was no similar event within the past 30 years, it is difficult to foresee a final decision of the president
of the Energy Regulatory Office. Accordin6.J to the Industrial Energy Sector and Energy Recipients Chamber,
approximately 12OO entiiies failed to comply with the restrictions in poland.

Sofar,intheletterof 2S.L2.20L6,thedeadlineforissuingthedecisionbythepresidentoftheEnergyRegulatoryoffice
has been extended until :]0 June 2017.

577378 745017

Period

ending

3L,t2,20L6

2779 220

576 800

(\qa))\

5Il 378

19,o3%

Period

ending

3L,L2.20L5
(restated figures)

2 754 952

523 440

L2r242

745 071.

27,O4%
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25, Tax settlements

Laws governing value added tax, corporate income tax, individual income tax, or social security contributions

are subject to frequent amendments, thereby preventing any reference to well-established regulations.

Current legislation is also marked by obscurity, leading to differences in opinions concerning legal interpretation
of tax laws both within tax authorities and between state authorities and corporate taxpayers.

Tax and other (i.e. supported employment enterprises or rights after loosing the supported employment enterprise status)

settlements may be controlled by relevant agencies that are authorised to impose penalties, and additional amounts due

established through such controls have to be paid along with high interest thereon.
These phenomena make tax risks in Poland higher than in countries that enjoy more developed tax systems.

Tax settlements may be controlled for five years after the end of the year in which relevant tax has been paid.

Therefore, as a result of such control, the Company's existing tax settlements may be questioned and

increased by any additional tax liability.

27. Financial risk management

The Company is exposed to the following risk pertaining to financial instruments:

morket risk comprising currency risk ond interest rote risk

credit risk

liauiditv risk

The risk management process is mostly focused on identification, measurement, and mitigation of risks,

including currency and interest rate fluctuations aspects.

In economic terms, transaction on the financial markets are entered into for the purpose of hedging against specific risks.

Morket risk

The Company's exposure to currency risk results from sales and purchases in foreign currencies, primarily in EUR

and, to the lower extent, in USD.

Moreover, the Company contracted the investment loan in EUR to finance transactions on the European market, and

and uses dual currency overdraft facilities (PLN/EUR) to provide financing for its current operations.
To minimize currency risks, the Company tries to align values and rnaturities of assets, and maturities of liabilities.

The most important and most effective factor in construing the currency risk management strategy is the human factor
consisting in control of, and collaboration among people involved in the selection of purchasing and selling markets.
The following are the Company's financial assets and liabilities, other than derivatives stated in foreign currencies,

translated into PLN at the closins rate at the balance sheet date:

Value rn

EUR

I Value after
U:;D --l translation

As at 31,12.2016

Financiol assets (+)

Loa ns

Trade receivables rrnd other
financial receivablr:s 3572306 - 3587775
Other financial asst-'ts

Cash and cash equivalents 259 18 004 19 366

Fi nanciol liabil ities ( )

LOans

Lease payables

Trade and other payables

financial liabilities

Total currency risk exposure

110472377],

(63s639s)

- (1oso61s1)

- (6419310)

(132562071 1B 004 1L33243201
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As at 31.12.2015

Finoncial ossets (+)

Loans

Trade receivables anrl other
financial receivables

Other financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Finonciol liobilities (-)

LOans

Lease payables

Trade and other payables

financial liabilities

Total currency risk exposure

Credit risk

White-collar workers

Blue-collar workers

totat FIt

Workers engaged under a contract of mandate

Workers engaged by the Job Agency

number of workers hired
number of workers terminated

29. Remuneration for the Board of Directo,rs

under the contract of employment
Board of Directors composed of 4 persons

Board of Directors composed of 5 persons

2848741

2lr7

179r729sl

(5413427)

lL047s2s2l

01.01.2016 01.01.2015

through 31.12.2016 through 31.12.2015

284I269

7 2522

\7902597]l

(s423788)

7 (10482s94)

The Board of Directors applies the credit policy, under which the Board monitors its clients'and debtors'outstanding payments
by reviewing the credit risk on a case by case basis. Moreover, as part if its credit risk management, the Company enters
into transactions with partners whose creditworthiness is confirmed.
Based on historical data on overdug payments, the receivables that are past due and for which no impairment losses have
have been recognised, do not show any significant deterioration in quality: most ofthem fall into the "within l- month" category,
andthereisnodoubtastotheirccillectability. AccordingtotheBoardof Directors'assessment,theassetsdisclosedas
at the balance sheet date may be Considered good credit quality assets.
No impairment loss has been recognised and there was no litigation during the year or at the balance sheet date.

Liquidity risk

While conducting its operating activities, the Company maintains a fixed amount of excess liquid cash, and
open lines of credit. The Company manages the liquidity risk by monitoring payment dates and demand
for cash with regard to the current liabilities (transactions are monitored on a fortnight basis).
The demand for cash is compared with the available sources offunding, in particularby evaluating
the ability to source funds under a loan, in comparison with current inflows.

28. Employmerrt structure

The following is the company's average headcount by employee groups and employee turnover:

40

r-68

208

44

59

33

01.01.2016

through 31.12.2016

560 279

JI
to /
204

19

3

25

38

01.01.2015

through 31.12"2015

s33 s28
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30. Post-balance sheet events

Afterthebalancesheet date, therewerenoeventsthathadanymaterialeffectontheassessmentoftheseFinancialStatemerits
or on the Company's financial position.

On O3.O2.2O77, the Company received the letter from BH notifying that BH waives its right to terminate the loans

in connection with the violation of the covenants set forth in the investment loan agreements nos.: BDK/KR-E/OOOO9I42I/O074/I3,
BDK/KR-E/00009I42I /Oo27 / 13 a nd BDK/KR-E/00O09I42L/ OOss/ 13

On 20.O2.2OI7, the resolution was adopted to extend the repayment deadline for the

On 30.01.2017, Vice-President Leszek Pawlowski was dismissed from his role, and his

contract of employment was also terminated by mutual agreement.

loans from Sarantis Polska SA until 31 JahuarV 2018 .

Srodo Wielkopolska, 74 Februory 2077

President of the Board of Directors
Vice-President of the Board

Vice-President of the Board

Vice-President of the Board

Artur Gwardiak

Magdalena to5-Grzesik

Magdalena Sobota

Emilia Topolska


